1995

## Utah v. Mark Dean Anderson : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION OF THE COURT OF APPEALS

The jurisdiction of the Court of Appeals is established by Section 78-2a-3(2)(f), Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended.

NATURE OF THE PROCEEDINGS

This is an appeal from the Judgment, Sentence, Stay of Execution of Sentence, Order of Probation, and Commitment from the Fifth Judicial District Court for Iron County, State of Utah, following a conviction of Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol, a Class A Misdemeanor; Driving on Suspension, a Class B Misdemeanor and False Information to a Peace Officer, a Class B Misdemeanor, on or about April 24, 1995.

ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

1. Did the trial court abuse its discretion in sentencing the Defendant to a maximum of eighteen months in jail after taking into consideration the Pre-Sentence Investigation Report?

2 Did the trial court err at the time of sentencing by imposing a consecutive sentence requiring Defendant to serve an

additional six months in jail when all three crimes to which the Defendant plead guilty were a result of the same criminal episode?

3. Did the trial court err at the time of sentencing by imposing cruel and/or unusual punishment in violation of the Eighth Amendment of the United States Constitution and Article I, Section IX, of the Constitution of the State of Utah?

#### DETERMINATIVE AUTHORITIES

1. "Excessive bail shall not be required, nor excessive fines imposed, nor cruel and unusual punishment inflicted." U. S. Const., Amend. 8.

2. "Excessive bail shall not be required; excessive fines shall not be imposed; nor shall cruel and unusual punishments be inflicted. Persons arrested or imprisoned shall not be treated with unnecessary rigor." Utah Const., Art. I, Section 9.

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

##### A. Nature of the Case

This is an appeal from a criminal conviction under a Judgment, Sentence, Stay of Execution of Sentence, Order of Probation, and Commitment from the Fifth Judicial District Court of Iron County.

##### B. Course of the Proceedings

On or about April 24, 1995, Defendant was convicted of Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol, a Class A Misdemeanor; Driving on Suspension, a Class B Misdemeanor; and False Information to a Peace Officer, a Class B Misdemeanor. Following a pre-sentence investigation and Pre-Sentence Investigation Report, sentencing was held on October 10, 1995.

#### C. Disposition at Trial Court

The Defendant, Mark Dean Anderson, was convicted of Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol, a Class A Misdemeanor; Driving on Suspension, a Class B Misdemeanor; and False Information to a Peace Officer, a Class A Misdemeanor.

The Court ordered the preparation of a Pre-Sentence Investigation Report. Thereafter, the Defendant appeared for sentencing on October 10, 1995, at which time the Honorable Robert T. Braithwaite sentenced Defendant to one year in jail on the Class A Misdemeanor, Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol, to run consecutively with six months to be served for the Class B Misdemeanor, Driving on Suspension, and that the sentence for False Information to a Peace Office, a Class B Misdemeanor, run concurrently. (Tr., 9-10).

#### D. Statement of the Facts

The Defendant, Mark Dean Anderson, was convicted of Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol, a Class A Misdemeanor; Driving on Suspension, a Class B Misdemeanor; and False Information to a Police Officer, a Class A Misdemeanor. The Defendant underwent presentence investigation and the Presentence Investigation Report recommended that Defendant serve eighteen months in the Iron County Jail. The Court, after hearing argument of counsel, ordered Defendant to serve eighteen months in the Iron County Jail, imposed a \$900.00 fine, and \$5,000.00 in restitution (Tr. 9-10).



### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Court clearly abused its discretion by sentencing Defendant to the maximum sentence. The Court, by imposing such a sentence, subjected Defendant to cruel and/or unusual punishment.

### ARGUMENT

#### POINT ONE

THE TRIAL COURT CLEARLY ABUSED ITS DISCRETION  
IN SENTENCING DEFENDANT TO A PRISON TERM OF  
EIGHTEEN MONTHS.

This Court has held that "we will set aside a sentence imposed by the trial court if the sentence represents an abuse of discretion, if the trial judge fails to consider all legally relevant factors, or if the sentence exceeds the limits prescribed by law." State v. Gentlewind, 844 P.2d 372, 375 (Utah Ct. App. 1992).

The Defendant argues that Judge Braithwaite was aggravated at the Defendant because said Defendant was allegedly not honest with the court. Judge Braithwaite stated, "I think you've been deceptive with the court. Dishonest with the court. You have a severe drinking problem, criminal problem. This, to me, is a clear-cut case that requires the maximum sentence." (Tr. 9).

The Defendant believes that the court clearly abused its discretion because of the circumstances surrounding the statements made by Judge Braithwaite prior to sentencing of the Defendant.

## POINT TWO

THE TRIAL COURT VIOLATED THE DEFENDANT'S RIGHTS PURSUANT TO THE EIGHTH AMENDMENT OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND ARTICLE I, SECTION 9 OF THE UTAH CONSTITUTION BY IMPOSING CRUEL AND UNUSUAL PUNISHMENT.

Article I, Section 9 of the Constitution of Utah specifically states:

Excessive bail shall not be required; excessive fines shall not be imposed; nor shall cruel and unusual punishments be inflicted. Person arrested or in prison shall not be treated with unnecessary rigor.

Amendment Eight of the United States Constitution states:

Excessive bail shall not be required, nor excessive fines imposed, nor cruel and unusual punishments inflicted.

While there is a long line of cases explaining what may or may not constitute cruel or unusual punishment, it is apparent that each case is fact sensitive, and for that this Defendant relies on the Utah Constitution as well as the United States Constitution.


Defendant firmly argues and believes that the lower court inflicted cruel and usual punishment by sentencing Defendant to the maximum sentence. This Defendant reasserts arguments set forth in Point I as basis for the argument that the court imposed cruel and unusual punishment when the Court became personally and emotionally involved in this case.

## CONCLUSION

Because the trial court's ruling at the time of sentencing was clearly erroneous and because the trial court thus

clearly abused its discretion, this Defendant requests that the matter be remanded to the trial court for alternative disposition.