1995

Utah v. Mark Dean Anderson : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION AND NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

This is an appeal from a sentence following convictions for Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol, a Class A Misdemeanor, in violation of Utah Code Ann. §41-6-44 (1994); Driving on Suspended or Revoked Operator's License, a Class B Misdemeanor, in violation of Utah Code Ann. §53-3-227 (1994); and False Information to a Law Enforcement Officer, a Class B Misdemeanor, in violation of Utah Code Ann. §76-8-507 (1983), in the Fifth Judicial District Court in and for Iron County, State of Utah, the Honorable Robert T. Braithwaite, presiding. This Court has jurisdiction to hear this appeal pursuant to Utah Code Ann. §78-2a-3(2)(f) (1995).

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES AND
STANDARD OF APPELLATE REVIEW

The issues presented in this appeal are:

1. Did the trial court abuse its discretion in sentencing Defendant to consecutive terms of imprisonment and staying an

additional six-month term of imprisonment? "Before the reviewing court may overturn the sentence given by the trial court, it must be clear that the actions of the judge were so inherently unfair as to constitute an abuse of discretion." State v. Rhodes, 818 P.2d 1048, 1051 (Utah App. 1991) (Citing State v. Gerrard, 584 P.2d 885, 887 (Utah 1978) (Emphasis added)).

2. If the Court adopts a stricter standard, based upon the fact that appellant failed to provide the appellate court with the presentence report, is the "presumption of regularity" still applicable? In order to avoid errors, sentencing procedures require a somewhat stricter standard than the general presumption of regularity. State v. Lipsky, 608 P.2d 1241, 1248 (Utah 1980). Even if this Court were to take the more rigorous stance, refusing to presume the regularity of the proceedings below in absence of the presentence report, the proceedings at the sentencing hearing amply show that the trial court did not abuse its discretion. Moreover, the presentence report, as provided by appellee, supports the proposition that the trial court did not abuse its discretion. For questions of fact involved in sentencing decisions, frequently constituting threshold inquiries that must be satisfied prior to addressing the legal intricacies, a "clearly erroneous" standard applies. State v. Rhodes, 818 P.2d 1048, 1049-50 (Utah App. 1991).

CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES AND RULES

Determinative constitutional provisions, statutes and rules

are compiled in Appendix A where not set forth in the body of this brief.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from the sentence, set forth in a Judgment, Sentence, Stay of Execution of Sentence, Order of Probation, and Commitment by the Honorable Robert T. Braithwaite, Fifth Judicial District Court, following a trial.

On or about April 24, 1995, the Defendant was convicted of Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol, a Class A Misdemeanor, in violation of Utah Code Ann. §41-6-44 (1994); Driving on Suspended or Revoked Operator's License, a Class B Misdemeanor, in violation of Utah Code Ann. §53-3-227 (1994); and False Information to a Law Enforcement Officer, a Class B Misdemeanor, in violation of Utah Code Ann. §76-8-507 (1983). Following a presentence investigation report, as prepared by the Utah Department of Adult Probation and Parole, sentencing occurred on October 10, 1995, and the Defendant was sentenced to one (1) year in the Iron County Jail pursuant to his conviction for Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol, a Class A Misdemeanor; six (6) months in the Iron County Jail pursuant to his conviction for Driving on a Suspended or Revoked Operator's License, a Class B Misdemeanor, said term to run consecutively to the one (1) year term set forth above; and six (6) months in the Iron County Jail pursuant to his conviction of False Information to a Law Enforcement Officer, a Class B Misdemeanor, said term of imprisonment to run concurrently with the other sentences.

Moreover, the Court sentenced the Defendant to pay a fine in the sum and amount \$900, and ordered the Defendant to pay restitution in the amount of \$5,000 as a term and condition of any probation the Defendant may receive.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On October 8, 1994, on Interstate 15 near Cedar City, Utah, Adam Russell was driving a vehicle (pulling a trailer) and was traveling toward his home when his vehicle was struck violently from behind by another vehicle. Mr. Russell's vehicle careened off the highway and rolled, causing serious injuries to Mr. Russell and severely damaging Mr. Russell's vehicle and trailer. Mr. Russell suffered neck injuries that required treatment with a "halo" and pins in his head for several weeks. Utah Highway Patrol Trooper Doug Twitchell responded to the accident scene and located another male individual "hiding in the bushes" and obviously intoxicated. The individual, later identified as Defendant Mark Dean Anderson, initially gave Trooper Twitchell the name of his brother (who is deceased), and it took several hours for Trooper Twitchell to learn that the Defendant had provided a false name. The State asserted at sentencing that the Defendant submitted the false name as Defendant has an extensive criminal record, numerous wants and warrants throughout the state of Utah, and the Defendant has not held a valid Utah driver's license since 1985.

The Defendant was tried twice in absentia, after several efforts to locate the Defendant for trial and sentencing failed,

but each time the Defendant objected and the matter was set for a new trial date. On April 24, 1995, the Defendant was again convicted (in his absence) of Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol, a Class A Misdemeanor; Driving on Suspended or Revoked Operator's License, a Class B Misdemeanor; and False Information to a Law Enforcement Officer, a Class B Misdemeanor. The Defendant fled to the state of Oregon, was located, and refused to waive extradition. The Iron County Attorney's Office forwarded a governor's warrant to Oregon and, after several hearings in Oregon regarding extradition and days before the governor's warrant was to arrive, the Defendant waived extradition and was returned to Utah.

On September 6, 1995, the Defendant appeared before the Court for sentencing. The Court ordered a presentence investigation report prior to sentencing, to be prepared by the Utah Department of Adult Probation and Parole, and upon completion of the presentence report the matter was called on for sentencing on October 10, 1995, at 9:00 a.m., in Cedar City, Utah.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Defendant has not provided this Court with a copy of the presentence report, and so it should presume regularity in the proceedings below and decline to consider Defendant's claims. However, even without the report, the transcript of the sentencing hearing shows that the trial court did not abuse its discretion in sentencing the Defendant to consecutive terms of imprisonment in the Iron County Jail, staying an additional six-month sentence, and

ordering the Defendant to pay a fine in the sum and amount of \$900 and restitution in sum and amount of \$5,000. The presentence report, as set forth and included in appellee's brief, clearly supports the Court's sentence in this case and as relating to this Defendant.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

REGULARITY IN THE PROCEEDINGS BELOW SHOULD BE PRESUMED WHERE DEFENDANT FAILED TO INCLUDE IN THE RECORD ON APPEAL THE PRESENTENCE REPORT. HOWEVER, RELYING ONLY ON THE RECORD OF THE SENTENCING HEARING, THE RECORD INDICATES THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION IN SENTENCING DEFENDANT.

"Before the reviewing court may overturn the sentence given by the trial court, it must be clear that the actions of the judge were so inherently unfair as to constitute an abuse of discretion." State v. Rhodes, 818 P.2d 1048, 1051 (Utah App. 1991) (Citing State v. Gerrard, 584 P.2d 885, 887 (Utah 1978)).

"The burden of showing error is on the party who seeks to upset the judgment." State v. Noren, 704 P.2d 568, 571 (Utah 1985) (Quoting State v. Jones, 657 P.2d 1263, 1267 (Utah 1982)).

In this case, Defendant has failed to include in the record on appeal the presentence report containing relevant information regarding the Defendant's background and criminal history which undoubtedly formed the basis of the trial court's sentencing decision. On such failure, this Court may decline to review the merits of Defendant's claim, presuming regularity in the

proceedings below. See State v. Eloge, 762 P.2d 1, 2 (Utah 1988) per curiam (presuming regularity in the proceedings below where the Defendant, challenging the trial court's discretion in denying him a 90-day diagnostic evaluation and sentencing him to a potential life sentence, failed to provide the court with a copy of the presentence report from which it might have assessed the trial court's discretion); State v. Mitchell, 671 P.2d 213, 215 (1983) (presuming regularity in the proceedings below where, though no transcript of the sentencing hearing was provided the appellate court, there was no suggestion that a presentence report was effectively concealed from the defendant.)

The Defendant's only argument is that the trial court abused its discretion in sentencing the Defendant because the sentencing judge stated, "I think you've been deceptive with the Court, dishonest with the Court. You have a serious drinking problem, criminal problem. This, to me, is a clear cut case that requires the maximum sentence." (Tr. 9) The Defendant fails to set forth any case law or statutory support for the proposition that these statements by the trial court constitute an abuse of discretion. The Defendant's argument is frivolous.

The Defendant then argues that Article I, Section 9 of the Constitution of the State of Utah, and the Eighth Amendment of the United States Constitution have been violated as the Court's sentence constitutes cruel and unusual punishment. Again, the Defendant fails to cite case law or statutory authority for the

proposition that a sentencing judge cannot impose consecutive sentences. Moreover, it should be noted that if the trial court had deemed it appropriate, the Defendant could have been sentenced to an additional six (6) months, consecutive to the two (2) other counts, causing for a total term of incarceration of twenty-four (24) months, as opposed to the eighteen (18) months actually imposed by the trial court. Again, the Defendant's argument is frivolous.

Finally, the sentence imposed by the trial court was within the parameters provided by law with respect to the terms of imprisonment (Utah Code Ann. §76-3-204 (1973)), the fine (Utah Code Ann. §76-3-301 (1995)), and the restitution (Utah Code Ann. §76-3-201 (1995)).

POINT II

EVEN IF THIS COURT WERE TO TAKE THE MORE RIGOROUS STANCE, REFUSING TO PRESUME THE REGULARITY OF THE PROCEEDINGS BELOW IN ABSENCE OF THE PRESENTENCE REPORT, THE PROCEEDINGS AT THE SENTENCING HEARING AMPLY SHOW THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION.

State v. Lipsky, 608 P.2d 1241, 1246 (Utah 1980) (citing State v. Carson, 597 P.2d 862, 866 (Utah 1979), stands for the proposition that, in order to avoid errors, sentencing procedures require a somewhat stricter standard than the general presumption of regularity. Even if this Court were to take the more rigorous stance, refusing to presume the regularity of the proceedings below in absence of the presentence report, the proceedings at the sentencing hearing amply show the trial court did not abuse its

discretion. The transcript from the sentencing proceedings, setting forth the statements by the sentencing judge ("I think you've been deceptive with the Court, dishonest with the Court. You have a serious drinking problem, criminal problem. This, to me, is a clear cut case that requires the maximum sentence.") is not an abuse of discretion.

Finally, the State has included the presentence investigation report (see Appendix A), and the State of Utah asserts that the presentence report provided the sentencing judge with a sufficient basis upon which to sentence the Defendant to eighteen (18) months in the Iron County Jail, with a six- (6-) month sentence stayed, together with a \$900 fine and restitution in the amount of \$5,000.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing reasons, the State of Utah respectfully requests that this Court affirm the Defendant's sentence.